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General Questions: 

Question: We are contractors for translation services into Spanish and French 
for UNAIDS. I saw a new RFP on line just now for another bid: I guess you don't 
need any thing from already existing vendors. Right?  
Can we bid for Russian again? Our translators who took the test last time 
failed while rushing in doing the test translation. 
 If so, can we get a deadline extension? It seems that the deadline for the 
expression of interest has already passed. 
 Has the RFP translation test? I don't see it on the RFP. 
Answer:  

- For current UNAIDS contractors of Translation Services there is no 
requirement for any action.   

- If you are interested in bidding for a language you were not granted 
an LTA in the previous exercise you may submit your proposal 
again. 

- No announcing your intention to bid does not prevent you from 
sending your proposal before the closing date of the RFP 

- Yes, there will be a technical written test as specified in section 3.4 
paragraph 3. 

 

Section 1.3 

Question: In the specifications there is no information regarding the volume of 
the tender in words, pages or €. For us the volume is an important reason to 
enter or don’t enter a RFP. Could you supply us with more information about 
the volume of the tender and the amount of contractors the volume will be 
divided under? 
 
Question: What is the approximate volume of work envisaged over the next 12 
months? 

Question: Financial Proposal there is no mention regarding the total volume to 
be translated. Our questions are: 

1. Could you give us an idea about the volumes? 
2. Are these volumes evenly distributed per language combination? 

 
Answer: In response to the queries please note that UNAIDS has an total estimated 
average volume per year of  

3,670,000 words to be translated into French 
2,100,000 words to be translated into Spanish 



 

 

2,100,000 words to be translated into Russian 
 
We have currently already a number of companies under Long Term Agreements to 
perform translations: 

13 LTA for translation into French,  
17 LTA for translation into Spanish, and  
8 LTA for translation into Russian.  

 
The amounts allocated for each company vary depending on their capacity and 
performance. UNAIDS yearly requirements vary as information production needs 
evolve during the year.   
 
UNAIDS estimates an average workload of 1,500 words per day per translator as 
reasonable workload. 
 

Question: Are multiple suppliers appointed on an annual basis to carry out the 
translation tasks identified in the RFP? If so, how are the translation tasks 
distributed between the multiple suppliers? 
Answer: Yes, we have already established a number of LTA in 2010 (as detailed 
above) to cover our needs, this is the 2010 call to keep a set of companies under 
LTA available for our needs during 2011. The allocation of tasks is also specified 
above  

 
Question: This is with reference to your tender (RFP) document we are 
interested to provide translation service to  English to French and English to 
Russian only ,kindly up date us  for the same 
Answer: Proposals only for a specific target language are accepted. Bidders do not 
need to bid for all services. The form “Proposal Completeness” allows you to indicate 
the range of services you are offering. 
 
Section 2.1 

Question: The document "RFP-2010-35-_AcknowledgementForm" gives 
December 13 as deadline for our bid. By contrast, section 2.10 of the RfP 
document gives December 3. Do we assume correctly that Friday, December 3 
@ 17 hrs Geneva time is the intended deadline? 
Answer: We took note of the misleading mistake and updated accordingly the 
document with the error. The closing date for the RFP is 3-December-2010 
 
Section 2.4 
Question: One further formal question: 2.4 of the RFP mentions "RFP-
RFPCompleteness.doc" as a required form , however this document is not 
available in the RFP documentation on the UNAIDS website. Could you forward 
the requested form, please? 
Answer: We took note of the problem and completed the information on the website 
by uploading the form. 
 
Question: Concerning the Proposal Completeness Form. What is one 
supposed to insert in the "Section" column? A number?  Under 



 

 

"Requirement", I guess it will be "Translation/revision/proofreading from 
English to French", for example?   
Finally, "Agreed and accepted, in four (2) original copies..." should probably 
read "... in two (2) original copies...". 
 
Question: as freelance translator, I don't understand how should i fill the 
"Proposal completeness form". What does it mean the "requirements" and 
"section" gap?  
 
Question: How is the "Proposal completeness form" to be filled in as a 
freelance translator? I am having problems trying to understand what to write 
in the "section" and "requirement" parts. 
 
Answer: The proposal completeness form is to inform UNAIDS of which components 
of the RFP your offer includes.  

- Under “Section” please enter “1.3”.  
- Under “Requirement” there are 3 components in the RFP. A) Translation 

Services from English to French, B) Translation Services from English to 
Spanish and C) Translation Services from English to Russian, please 
enter the services you are officering. 

- You are right, the correct sentence should be “… in two (2) original 
copies”, however if the submission is electronically, we can accept a 
single scanned signed copy. 

 
 
Section 2.7.1 
Question: Bidders must send a Proposal Submission Form: 
           2.7.1 Proposal Submission Form 
           The bidder's proposal must be accompanied by a Proposal Submission 
Form, in the form attached hereto as Annex 1... 
The file "Proposal Submission Form" is on the Website, however, what does 
"in the form attached hereto as Annex 1" mean? There is no such annex in the 
document, therefore I might be missing some relevant format aspects. 
Answer: The “Proposal Submission Form” available in the UNAIDS website 
(http://www.unaids.org/Resources/UNAIDS/documents/RFP-2010-
35_ProposalSubmissionForm.doc ) is actually the Annex 1. 
 
Section 2.7.2 
Question: "Organization information" to be contained in our proposal, you 
stipulate in the list of requirements that the bidder identify "Proposed sub-
contractor arrangements including company information (as above for each 
sub-contractor)" as structure item 1.6. 
Does this mean that you will also require ALL of the information below from 
the agency (agencies) that we may choose to subcontract to, or does this 
apply only to Joint Bids that involve no subcontracting in the strict sense?  

- Organization structure 
- Geographical presence 
- Number and Geographical distribution of staff 

http://www.unaids.org/Resources/UNAIDS/documents/RFP-2010-35_ProposalSubmissionForm.doc
http://www.unaids.org/Resources/UNAIDS/documents/RFP-2010-35_ProposalSubmissionForm.doc


 

 

- Number of employees working on similar projects in each of the past 
three years 
- Audited financial statements for the past three (3) years 
- Legal information 
- History of bankruptcy 
- Pending major lawsuits and litigations in excess of USD 100,000 at risk 
(indicate particularly those by licensees or patent infringement) 
- Pending Criminal/Civil lawsuits 
- Contractual programs (with other UN agencies or International 
Organizations) 

Our bid will be a strictly subcontract-based effort, not a joint bid. So we're 
asking this question for clarity's sake, because having to come up with this 
information for subcontractors creates much additional overhead; it was not 
required in other UN bids that we participated in. Additionally, the information 
may not be readily or quickly accessible for the purposes of the current bid. 
Answer: The full information about the companies is only required for co-bidding 
companies. In the case of subcontractors we are interested in determining if the 
subcontracting arrangements meet our requirements, we will not need audited 
financial statements but as much key information as you can reasonably provide to 
determine suitability of your partner. 

 
Question:  As a translation company the core of our resources are individual 
freelance translators, are these to be considered as a form of subcontracting? 
Answer: Yes your company subcontracts freelance translators. UNAIDS is interested 
in the capacities of the individuals who will perform the services offered and 
companies must designate specific individuals on their RFP and complete the 
TranslatorsCV form for each individual providing services regardless of the individual 
been staff of the company or a subcontracted freelance translator. 
 
Question: Do please confirm whether the “qualification profile template” 
referred to in section 2.7.2 is represented by means of the annex 
“TranslatorsCV”. In this form to be provided, personal and contact data from 
each individual translator are requested. How are companies to supply this 
information, in particular when they are engaging freelance translators to carry 
out the translation work expected under the contract? Can in this case 
translators’ personal data be omitted and replaced by those of the company 
submitting the bid? Of course al other data, as regards their professional and 
academic profile would be entered in the form. 
Answer: UNAIDS confirms the “Translator CV” form is the “Qualification profile 
template”.   UNAIDS is interested in the capacities of the individuals who will perform 
the services offered and companies must designate specific individuals on their RFP 
and complete the “Translator CV” form for each individual providing services 
regardless of the individual been staff of the company or a subcontracted freelance 
translator. 
 
Question: Please specify on what page can the “qualification profile template” 
be found? It is advised to “click on the link at the end of the document”, while 
the link is not indicated on page 20, which is the last page of the document. 



 

 

Answer: We apologize for the confusing instructions in the RFP, the “Qualification 
Profile Template” is actually listed as an annex in our website as “Translator CV”. 
This needs to be completed for every translator proposed. 
 
Please find below the direct link to download it: 
http://www.unaids.org/Resources/UNAIDS/documents/RFP-2010-
35_TranslatorCV.doc  
  
In addition, if you are bidding as a company you would need to submit the 
information about your company including the headings described in section 2.7.2 in 
page 8. 
 

Question: UNAIDS is requesting "Audited financial statements for the past 
three (3) years".  Please note that as per applicable law in _______, certified 
Annual Reports are prepared annually by our tax adviser. Up to the time of this 
writing (November 2010), (our company) has not had its Annual Reports 
audited by a third-party public accountant company due to cost 
considerations. This was also the case in a prior UNAIDS RFP we participated 
in. At the time, UNAIDS confirmed to us that certified financial statements are 
sufficient to satisfy UNAIDS requirements. Will this also apply to this RFP? 
Answer: UNAIDS confirms, the certified financial statements are sufficient to satisfy 
UNAIDS requirements for the RFP. 
 

Question: Could you please confirm that the only documents to be sent by an 
individual (freelance translator) are:   
RFP-2010-25_ProposalSubmissionForm and RFP-2010-35_TranslatorCV, as 
part of the technical bid (I understand that the last part of the CV can be used 
to detail the proposal with regard to previous experience, use of CAT tools, 
time zone, etc.)  
RFP-2010-25_FinancialProposal, as part of the financial bid 
Answer:  UNAIDS confirms. The bid from an individual should only include: Proposal 
Submission Form and Translator CV for the Technical envelope (or email) and the 
Financial Proposal in the Financial envelope (or email). 
 
Question: We understand that as we are an INSTITUTION we must fulfill the 
INSTITUTION INFORMATION AREA  If this is right, we understand that we must 
not giving you information from our translators 
Do please tell us if we must giving you  personal information from our 
Translators and if so, how many must be included, because depending on the 
jobs sometimes we are using may be one or two, and other may be six,,,,,,??? 
Answer: UNAIDS is interested in the capacities of the individuals who will perform the 
services offered and companies must designate specific individuals on their RFP and 
complete the “Translator CV” form for each individual providing services regardless 
of the individual been staff of the company or a subcontracted freelance translator.  If 
the company offer is accepted, UNAIDS will offer a Long Term Agreement with 
specific requirement for the individuals who pass the technical test. 
 
  

http://www.unaids.org/Resources/UNAIDS/documents/RFP-2010-35_TranslatorCV.doc
http://www.unaids.org/Resources/UNAIDS/documents/RFP-2010-35_TranslatorCV.doc


 

 

Question: May we add more lines that we may find relevant to describe our 
organization? 
Answer: Yes. 
 
Question: In point 1.2.2 we do not understand the question. Could you please 
elaborate? Are these internal or freelancers? 
Answer: If the company has staff dedicated to provide translations services we are 
interested in the number of staff dedicated to those services. You can indicate if they 
are internal staff of freelance translators. 
 
Question: In section 2.1.1 you mention "FTE". What does it stand for in this 
context? 
Answer: Full Time Equivalent. 
 
Question: In point 2.1.3 what sort of data is required about the relevant 
members that have participated in other projects? Do you need CVs, their 
functional roles in the projects or their functional roles in the organization as a 
whole? 
Answer: This section refers to the team members assigned to the particular project 
listed as experience. Names and roles on the project is sufficient. 
 
Question: Experiences and reference contact information. (5 detailed examples 
of relevant services provided) 
Answer: Provide us with up to 5 projects carried by the company that are relevant to 
this RFP. 
 
Question: In section 2.7.2. it states that the bidders proposal must be 
accompanied by a “qualification profile template” referring to a link at the end 
of the document. We were unable to find a link at the end of the RFP. Do you 
mean by qualification profile template the annex titled Translator Curriculum 
Vitae?  
Answer:  UNAIDS confirms the “Translator CV” form is the “Qualification profile 
template” 
 
 
Section 2.7.3 

Question: Bidders must also include a "Technical Proposal": 
            2.7.3 Technical Proposal 
            The bidder should include in this section all relevant information for 
UNAIDS to evaluate the proposal, including information relating to coverage of 
UNAIDS needs and requirements, as specified in section 1, proposed timeline, 
resources dedicated partially or fully to the project. 
A document named "Technical Proposal" is nowhere to be found on the 
Website. Instead, there is a document called "Translator CV", is this perhaps 
the document implied? 
Answer: In case of individuals the technical proposal consists of the “Translator CV”. 
The bid from an individual should only include: Proposal Submission Form and 
Translator CV for the Technical envelope (or email) and the Financial Proposal in the 
Financial envelope (or email). 



 

 

 

Question: I would like to know if the Technical Proposal is included in the 
document called TranslatorCV, and if we need to submit as "supporting 
documents" certified copies of our degrees and diplomas. 
Answer: In case of individuals the technical proposal consists of the “Translator CV”. 
The bid from an individual should only include: Proposal Submission Form and 
Translator CV for the Technical envelope (or email) and the Financial Proposal in the 
Financial envelope (or email).  Yes submitting copies of Diplomas will support your 
CV. 
 
Section 2.7.4 

Question: In regards to the Financial Proposal for the services to be translated 
there are three prices that must be quoted  
  i.        Translation from English into language USD XXXX per 1000 words 

ii.        Revision of the translated text: USD XXXX per 1000 words 
iii.        Proofreading and corrections:  USD XXXX per 1000 words 

A.    In regards to point i. Translation from English into language, does UNAIDS 
mean that you will only want a translation without revision or delivery of a final 
translation including a translation and revision by a native, in country 
specialists, as part of our ISO quality procedure. This is because normally in 
our price for translation, the cost of both translation and revision is included. 
B.    We would like to clarify if the revision price is to be set for the translations 
that we will be performing or if there is a possibility that UNAIDS will be 
sending us translated documents to be revised by us and thus a cost apart?  
C.    Furthermore, by proofreading and corrections does this mean that 
UNAIDS will want us to proofread and INSERT corrections or simply annotate 
the corrections to then be inserted by UNAIDS.  
Answer: 

A. Translation implies delivery of a finished, quality assured product. 
However, if the original source text was subsequently revised, we request 
the supplier to revise their translation according to the updated/revised 
English text. Another case when we may require revision is when 
translation was done by one supplier, and we ask another supplier to 
revise it as part of quality control. 

B. See A – it should be set for both cases mentioned therein. 
C. Proofreading means checking translated text after layout (usually using 

the note tool in the pdf file, or indicating them clearly in the form of a table, 
list, etc.).  Our graphics designers then incorporate your changes into his 
InDesign file. 

 
Section 2.8 

Question: If the documents are sent by e-mail, is it also necessary to send two 
copies of each document, i.e. "Master copy" and "Copy 1"? 
Answer: No need for duplicates if the information is sent by email. 
 

Question: Confirm that the proposals may be sent by email to the secure email 
accounts specified under note 2 of section 2.8, on or before the indicated 
deadline. In this case one single copy is to be sent and no extra hard copies 
are required. 



 

 

 
Question: In section 2.8 Format and Signing of Proposals, it states that if 
preferred the proposal may instead be forwarded to two secure email 
accounts. Can you please confirm if this means that we can a) send the 
proposal solely by email or b) If the proposal sent by email must also be mailed 
by post? 
Answer: Confirm. If proposal is submitted electronically to the specified email 
addresses (Technical information to TechnicalBids@unaids.org and Financial 
information to FinancialBids@unaids.org), there is no need to send hard copies. 
 
Question: PROPOSAL SUBMISSION FORM: “Agreed and accepted, in two (2) 
original copies on”. In case of electronic submission of the proposal, may the 
sentence be changed to: ““Agreed and accepted, in one (1) original copy on”? 
Answer: Yes 
 

Question: Proposal Completeness Form: “Agreed and accepted, in four (2) 
original copies on [date]”. In case of electronic submission of the proposal, 
may the sentence be changed to: “Agreed and accepted, in one (1) original 
copy on [date]”? 
Answer: Yes 

Question: Paragraph: 2.8: In case the proposal is delivered via e-mail, do all the 
requirements (such as 2 copies) refer to the delivery the same way as 
delivering hard copies? Are the bids in this case to be delivered in a scanned, 
PDF format? 
Answer: In case you decide to submit your proposal electronically, then only 1 copy 
is needed in the email.   PDF is the preferred format. 
 

Question: Is the Proposal Submission form, Proposal Completeness Form and 
Information of Firm to be delivered as a part of technical proposal or each in a 
separate file, when delivering to one e-mail account intended for Technical 
Bids? 

Answer: Documents can be provided as a single file or as separate files. 

Question:  Format and Signing of Proposals:  [...] Each complete technical 
proposal should include the following: 
                        - Hard copy of proposal (as specified in section 2.7.3) and 
supporting documents (marked clearly Bid Ref RFP-2010-35)  
 
What are "supporting documents"? Perhaps copies of degrees or certificates 
mentioned in the "Translator CV" document? Or are they just the "Financial 
Proposal" and the "Proposal Completeness Form"? 
Answer: Copies of certifications and/or diplomas must be provided as supporting 
information for the CV. 

 

 

-------------------- END OF DOCUMENT ------------------   
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